TENNESSEE LocAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

JuLY 26, 2022
AGENDA

1. Call meetingto order

2. Approval of minutes from the TLDA meeting of June 15, 2022

3. Annual review of Tennessee Local Development Authority’s Debt Management Policy

4. Consider for approval the following Clean Water Loans:

SRF Base Principal Total Interest
Loan Forgiveness  Request Rate Term
City of Cleveland SRF 2022-473 $ 4,650,000 | $ - $ 4,650,000 | 1.33% 20
City of Oak Ridge SRF 2021-455 $ 1,900,000 | $ - $ 1,900,000 | 2.42% 20
Town of Thompson's Station CG9 2022-469 $ 5,000,000 | $ - $ 5,000,000 | 1.96% 20
Town of Thompson's Station SRF 2022-470 $ 10,400,000 | $ - $ 10,400,000 [ 2.26% | 20
Town of Smyrna CG20 2022-474 $ 800000 |$ - $ 800,000 | 1.92% 20
5. Consider for approval the following Drinking Water Loans:
SRF Base Principal Total Interest
Loan Forgiveness  Request Rate Term
City of Cleveland DWF 2022-247 $ 825,000 | $ - $ 825,000 | 1.33% 20
City of Oak Ridge DWF 2022-253 $ 30,000,000 | $ - $ 30,000,000 | 2.48% 20

6. Adjourn




TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
June 15, 2022

The Tennessee Local Development Authority (the “TLDA”) met on Wednesday, June 15, 2022, at 11:11a.m. in
the Executive Conference Room, Ground Floor, State Capitol, Nashville, Tennessee. The Honorable Tre Hargett,
Secretary of State, was present and presided over the meeting.

The following members were also present:

The Honorable Jason E. Mumpower, Comptroller of the Treasury
The Honorable David H. Lillard, Jr., State Treasurer
Commissioner Jim Bryson, Department of Finance and Administration

The following member participated telephonically as authorized by Tennessee Code Annotated Section 8-44-108
and included in the meeting notice:

Mayor Gary Cordell, Senate Appointee
The following members were absent:

The Honorable Bill Lee, Governor
Mayor Paige Brown, House Appointee

Recognizing a quorum present, Mr. Hargett called the meeting to order and asked Ms. Sandra Thompson, TLDA
Assistant Secretary and the Director of the Division of State Government Finance (DSGF) to conduct a roll-call:

Mayor Cordell—Present
Mr. Lillard—Present

Mr. Mumpower—Present
Mr. Hargett—Present
Mr. Bryson—Present

Mr. Hargett stated that the first item on the agenda was approval of the minutes from the April 26, 2022, TLDA
meeting. Mr. Mumpower made a motion to approve the minutes, and Mr. Bryson seconded the motion. Mr. Hargett
asked Ms. Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote:

Mayor Cordell—Aye
Mr. Lillard—Aye

Mr. Mumpower—Aye
Mr. Hargett—Aye
Mr. Bryson—Aye

The minutes were unanimously approved.

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was the consideration of a request from the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County (Metro Nashville) to issue a United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) loan in an amount not to
exceed $315,000,000 on parity with its outstanding State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreements. He recognized
Ms. Thompson to present the request. Ms. Thompson stated that Metro Nashville requested approval from the
TLDA to issue an EPA WIFIA loan in the amount of $315,000,000 on parity with its outstanding SRF loan
agreements. She stated that the request for approval was required by the provisions set forth in the SRF loan
agreements and guidelines set forth in the TLDA/SRF Policy and Guidance for Borrowers. Ms. Thompson stated
that the proposed debt would be a new money issuance and that Metro Nashville was looking to obtain the money
to cover about 49% of its current project. She further stated that in the future, Metro Nashville planned to request a



second tranche of funds from the TLDA in approximately the same amount and that it would be asking for parity
as well. She stated that the DSGF and the Department of Local Government Finance had conducted a review of all
the financial information presented by Metro Nashville. Ms. Thompson said Metro Nashville was rated Aa2 by
Moody’s and AA by Standard and Poor’s. She stated that it had a history of timely repayments on its SRF loans,
had timely filed its audit report, and would have sufficient revenues to cover its debt service. She stated that its
current and projected debt service coverage ratios met or exceeded the required 1.2 times coverage. She noted that
Metro Nashville was currently under the jurisdiction of the Water and Wastewater Finance Review Board (WWFB)
and stated that board members’ packets contained information about Metro Nashville’s corrective action ordered
by the WWFB. Ms. Thompson stated that based on the analysis conducted, it appeared that Metro Nashville would
meet the TLDAs criteria to issue the WIFIA loan on parity with its SRF loans. Mr. Hargett then inquired if there
were any questions for Metro Nashville’s counsel, Mr. Jeff Oldham. There were no questions.

Mr. Hargett asked for a motion to approve the request. Mr. Bryson made a motion to approve the request, and Mr.
Mumpower seconded the motion. Mr. Hargett inquired if there was any discussion. Hearing none, he asked Ms.
Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote:

Mayor Cordell—Aye
Mr. Lillard—Aye

Mr. Mumpower—Aye
Mr. Hargett—Aye
Mr. Bryson—Aye

The request was unanimously approved.

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item of business was the consideration of a request from the Castalian Springs-
Bethpage Utility District (the “District”) to issue Waterworks Revenue and Refunding and Improvement Bonds in
an amount not to exceed $4,240,000 on parity with its outstanding SRF loan agreements. He called upon Ms.
Thompson to present the request. Ms. Thompson stated that the District was requesting to issue the debt in an
amount not to exceed $4,240,000 on parity with its outstanding SRF loan agreements. She stated that the request
for approval was required by the provisions set forth in the SRF loan agreements and guidelines set forth in the
TLDAJ/SRF Policy and Guidance for Borrowers. She stated that the proposed debt would be a new money issuance
and that the District planned to use the funds to construct some capital improvements to its waterworks system. Ms.
Thompson further stated that it would refund prior debt for debt service savings and that the net present value
savings would be approximately $145,000. She noted that the bonds would not constitute balloon indebtedness for
purposes of TCA 9-21-134 and that the District was not under the jurisdiction of the Utility Management Review
Board or the WWFB. Ms. Thompson reported that the bonds would be secured solely by a pledge of the system’s
revenues. She stated that the District was currently rated A+ by Standard and Poor’s. She further stated that the
District had timely repayments of its SRF loans, had timely filed its audit report for FY2021, and had sufficient
revenues available to cover its debt service. She stated that its debt service coverage ratio met the requirements of
1.2 times coverage. In conclusion, Ms. Thompson stated that based on the analysis conducted, it appeared that the
District would meet the TLDA’s criteria to issue the bonds on parity. Mr. Hargett inquired if Mr. Oldham was
counsel for the District, and Mr. Oldham responded affirmatively.

Mr. Hargett asked for a motion to approve the request. Mr. Mumpower made a motion to approve the request, and
Mr. Lillard seconded the motion. Mr. Hargett inquired if there was any discussion. Hearing none, he asked Ms.
Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote:

Mayor Cordell—Aye
Mr. Lillard—Aye

Mr. Mumpower—Aye
Mr. Hargett—Aye
Mr. Bryson—Aye

The request was unanimously approved.



Mr. Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was the consideration and approval of Clean Water State
Revolving Fund (CWSRF) loan requests and stated that, unless there was any objection, the TLDA would hear the
six loan requests prior to asking for a motion to approve. Hearing none, he recognized Mr. Adeniyi Bakare, SRF
Program Manager of the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC), to present the loan
requests. Mr. Bakare first presented the Report on Funds Available for Loan Obligation for the CWSRF Loan
Program. He stated the unobligated fund balance was $140,574,352 as of February 23, 2022. Upon approval of the
loan requests to be presented totaling $3,623,670, the remaining funds available for loan obligations would be
$136,950,682. He then presented the CWSRF loan requests.

e Smyrna (SRF 2022-472) Requesting $1,760,000 for collection system expansion (Installation of
approximately 41,400 linear feet of 12-inch, 18-inch, 20-inch, and 24-inch diameter sewer lines and 101
manholes in the Almaville Road/Stewart Creek Area) Planning and Design loan only; recommended
interest rate of 1.21% based on the Ability to Pay Index (ATPI); Priority ranking 17 of 64 (FY2020);
Term: 5 years

¢ Hamilton County WWTA (SRF 2022-464) Requesting $500,000 for a new pump station/force main
(Construction/installation of a pump station and force main to eliminate the Signal Mountain (Suck Creek)
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) discharge and connect to the City of Chattanooga’s sewer system)
Planning only; recommended interest rate of 0.79% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 3 of 53 (FY2021);
Term: 5 years

e Hamilton County WWTA (SRF 2022-465) Requesting $350,000 for a collection system rehabilitation
(A feasibility study of installing a low-pressure sewer system to replace gravity sewers located along
streams/ravines within several sub-basins in the Signal Mountain service area) Planning only;
recommended interest rate of 0.79% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 26 of 53 (FY2021); Term: 5
years

e Hamilton County WWTA (SRF 2022-466) Requesting $150,000 for a collection system rehabilitation
(A feasibility study of installing a new pump station and associated appurtenances near Alexian Village to
transport sewer to the Signal Mountain WWTP to eliminate chronic sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs))
Planning only; recommended interest rate of 0.79% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 27 of 53
(FY2021); Term: 5 years

e Hamilton County WWTA (SRF 2022-467) Requesting $587,000 for an infiltration and inflow (I/1)
correction (Rehabilitation of the sewer lines in Sewer Basin 1, 2, 3, and 4A to reduce I/1, improve hydraulic
capacity, and eliminate SSOs in the Soddy Daisy Area) Planning and Design; recommended interest rate
of 0.79% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 28 of 53 (FY2021); Term: 5 years

e Hamilton County WWTA (SRF 2022-468) Requesting $276,670 for an I/I correction (Rehabilitation of
the sewer lines in Sewer Basin 5, 6, and 7 that will improve hydraulic capacity and eliminate SSOs in the
Red Bank Area) Planning and Design; recommended interest rate of 0.79% based on the ATPI; Priority
ranking 29, 30, and 49 of 53 (FY2021); Term: 5 years

Mr. Hargett inquired if there was any discussion, comments, or questions. Mr. Mumpower answered affirmatively
and asked if Hamilton County WWTF staff was present at the meeting. Hamilton County WWTF staff was not in
attendance. Mr. Hargett asked Mr. Mumpower if any concerns needed to be discussed. Mr. Mumpower said there
was not.

Mr. Hargett inquired if there was any further discussion. Hearing none, Mr. Mumpower made a motion to approve
the loans, and Mr. Bryson seconded the motion. Mr. Hargett asked Ms. Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote:



Mayor Cordell—Aye
Mr. Lillard—Aye

Mr. Mumpower—Aye
Mr. Hargett—Aye
Mr. Bryson—Aye

The loans were unanimously approved.

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was consideration and approval of a Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund (DWSRF) loan. He called upon Mr. Bakare to present the loan request. Mr. Bakare first presented
the Report on Funds Available for Loan Obligation for the DWSRF Loan Program. He stated the unobligated fund
balance was $88,986,167 as of April 26, 2022. Upon approval of the loan requests to be presented totaling $88,500,
the remaining funds available for loan obligations would be $88,897,667. He then presented the DWSRF loan
request.

e Trezevant (DW7 2021-235) Requesting $88,500 ($44,250 (50%) loan; $44,250 (50%) principal
forgiveness) for WTP improvements (Rehabilitation of the clear wells; replace aeration equipment; and the
installation of new high service pumps, controls, and electrical components); recommended interest rate of
0.10% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 3 of 48 (FY2020); Term: 5 years

Mr. Hargett inquired if there were any questions, and Mr. Mumpower answered affirmatively. Mr. Mumpower
asked if Trezevant staff was present. Trezevant staff was not in attendance. Mr. Hargett stated that he hoped
Hamilton County and Trezevant would receive calls regarding the late submission of the audit reports. Ms.
Thompson responded saying that letters describing why they were late were included in members’ packets

Mr. Hargett inquired if there were any further questions or comments. Hearing none, he asked for a motion to
approve the loan. Mr. Mumpower made a motion to approve the loan, and Mr. Bryson the motion. Mr. Hargett
asked Ms. Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote:

Mayor Cordell—Aye
Mr. Lillard—Aye

Mr. Mumpower—Aye
Mr. Hargett—Aye
Mr. Bryson—Aye

The loan was unanimously approved.

Mr. Hargett recognized Mr. Mumpower to make an announcement. Mr. Mumpower stated that in keeping with the
new state law that required visible and transparent meetings (using video and audio broadcasting), all board and
commission meetings staffed by the Comptroller’s office would begin to be held in the Comptroller’s Volunteer
Conference Center (VCC) on the second floor of the Cordell Hull building as of July 1. He said that he looked
forward to seeing the staff in the VCC at the next scheduled meetings.

Hearing no other business, Mr. Hargett asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Mumpower made a motion
to adjourn, and Mr. Lillard seconded the motion. Mr. Hargett asked Ms. Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote:

Mayor Cordell—Aye
Mr. Mumpower—Aye
Mr. Hargett—Aye



Mr. Lillard—Aye
Mr. Bryson—Aye

The meeting was adjourned.

Approved on this day of , 2022.

Respectfully submitted,

Sandra Thompson
Assistant Secretary



Tennessee Local Development
Authority

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY

Prepared by:
Division of State Government Finance



Table of Contents

Tennessee Local DeveloOPMENt AUTNOTILY ......cureueeieeessssessssssessssssssssessssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssessssssnns
Debt ManagemMeENt POLICY ....couuuereenieseesseeesesssesssssssesssessesssessssessssssss s sssess s sssass s s s ssses s sssssssss s sanas
0L 0 76 L0 ot () VPP
GOAIS ANA ODJECLIVES uuvurrrrerrirresisesesssesssssssss s ssssss s ssssss s e sss s s s ssss s s s s s s sase s
A, The GOalS Of thiS POIICY vttt ssseesti s ssesssssse s bbb s s
B.  The Objectives Of thiS POLICY ... ssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssnes
Debt Management/ GENETAL.......oeeeeecereesesseeseesesssessessse st sssesss e s sssse bbb bbb s s a bbb nes
A, Purpose and USe Of DDt ISSUAMNCE ........cuieeeriemerreesseeecsseesesssssessssssesssesssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssns
B.  DeDbt Capacity ASSESSIMIENL . ...ccuiuueerresrereeseeseessesssessesssessssssesssssse et sesssesssssssssssssesssesssssesssessessesssessssssesssessasasessees
C. Federal TaX STATUS .veeeeeeseerrersseesseesseesssesssesssessseesssesssesssessseesseesssssssssssesssessssssssesssesssessseesssesssesssessssesssssssesssessseeens
TYPES OF DED Lottt ittt ees s ss bbb RS R e R R et
S O 2 1) U (3PP
B, ShOTt-Term Dbt s s b
Debt ManageIMENT STIUCTUTE ......cuueeueeesreesreesseesseesssesssessseesssesssesssesssessssesssesssesssesssessssesssesssessssesasssesssesssessssesssessssssasssasessnes
S =) oo o PP
B, Debt SErviCe SEIUCTUTE ...ttt s s
C.  CQll PrOVISIONS ...cceueeueesseesseersrerssessseesseessessssesssesssessseesssesssesssessseesseesssssss s sssessseessessssesssasssessseesssesssesssasssassssssssesssessseeens
D. Original [ssuance DiSCOUNT/PIeMIUIM ..ottt eses s ses e esss s sasesees
Refunding OutStanding DEDL ........cerereerneereeseeseesserseessessseesssessesssessssss s sssesssesssessssssss e sssesssessssssssessssssssssasesanes
A, Refunding OPPOTTUNITIES ....oieieeeceeereise et iseessess s ssssss s sssess s bbb et bs b e
B.  Term of RefUNAING ISSUES ... rsesssees s seesssess s ss s sssesssess s s sssessssssssssssesssssssesens
LGN X100 0 A AV ot D oY PP
D ATDIETAEE ettt s bR AR R AR ER R R R R
D 0TSy 0 1] Lo PP
0 (= 00T 30 Y- PPN
O 01 ) 40 o 1] 1o L= PP
B.  NEGOLIALEA ...ttt ettt b s s e b s bR AR R s R bR
C.  Private PIACEIMENT ...t ssesss st ssssss s s s s s s snes
Selection of Underwriting Team (Negotiated TranSaction) ........coeneeneeneensesseesesneessesssessessessessesssssesees
Y VN Y 0 U (0] gL = g o o) PP
S JR 10T 1 =1 - o)
C.  SEIlNG GIOUPS . coueereeueueesreeeessessesseeseesseessessssssessesssesssesss e s sessessessse et sessse et s s £ e R e E s s bR E e bbb s
D, UNAEIrWIITEr’S COUNSEL ..ot ssessessse s isssssssssssssss st sssssssssss s s sssssssssessssssssssssssssssasessnes
CIEAIt QUALTLY .eeueeeeureeeeseeeeeseesesseessessetsse s ss e ss s s b s s R 4R R EA s bbb s nes

Security for the TLDA BONA PrOZIaIM ...c..ceeeeeseeeessersessseesssesssessesssessssssssesssesssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasesanes



(0806 Dol DNs o =0 0001 <) 00 1<) 0 X T 8

A, BONA INSUFAINCE c.uuceieieiereeeeuseeeeseesetsessse e s esssssessse s s s s b s R s Es e b bbbt 8
B, LEtEr'S Of CreAit.cmucuieieeeeeeeseessessecese et et s e sssesssees bbb R 9
G LIQUIIEY ceeureeeeueeeeeseeseeseesseessesse s essssseesse s s s s bR s £ R R R s bR bbb 9
D.  UsSe Of StrUCLUTEd PTOAUCES ....cuueueerieereeeeseeeceseesesseisetsssses st ssse s bsss s s bbb s s 9
RISK ASSESSITIENT....ouvivureeeeeeseeeseesseessessseesssesssesssess s sss s s s s s E SRR R SRR R R R E ARt 9
A, Change in PUDLIC/PIiVAte USE ...t essiesssessesssssssssssssesssssss s sssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssns 9
B, DEfAUIL RISKu ittt sssssss s s s ssssse s sees s s bbb bR 9
C. LIQUIILY RISKuuiiiitiieriereieseesce sttt it sessse s s s s s s b s bbb 10
D.  INEETEST RALE RISKu .ottt ss s ss s e b 10
E.  ROIIOVET RISK..iiiiiiiriisrisseieinsisesssissessesss st sessss s ssss st tsss s s s st snsas 10
F. MATKEE RISKu ettt s s s s s s s R 10
B E T 0] 02 1= o) 10
PrOfESSIONAl SEIVICES ...ouvurerieereieeseisee s ssesse s s s s s s s bbb st 10
A, ISSUET'S COUNSEL ...ttt es e s bbb s s R 10
B, BONA COUNSEL..cuitiiriiiecict ettt st b s bbb 11
LOT 351 0 F: U o o E=1 2 o AT Y ) oSO 11
D.  REfUNAING TIUSTEE c.ereereeerreesreesseerseeesseeseesseesseessesssesssessseessss s sssess s ssssssssssess s sssess s sssesssesssessssssasesases 11
DT D 1= -1 =) o PP RTTTPRT 11
F.  Issuing and Paying AENt...... e reeseisseseeess s sssesssssssssssss s ssssss s e sssssssssssssse s ssssssssssesas 11
(TN 05 o/=Ta VU o 101 (o U0 720 53 (1074 Us U=) o0 11
H.  VErifiCAtionN AGENT ..ttt ss et s s s s bbb bbb 11
[ ESCrOW BiddiNg AGENT....oiereeesecereeeeeseesseesssessesssesssesssessssssssssssssssessssssssesssesssesssss s sssesssessssssssessssssssssssesaessnes 11
Potential CONFIICES Of INEEIEST.....ieercerreereeerecesecis et ss et b bbb s s bbb s 12
DDt AQMINISTIATION ... cuureeeereereie et e bbb s s bbb st 12
A, Planning fOr SAle.. et es et R 12
B.  Preparing for BONA CLOSINEG.....ccicereereseereessreessessseesseessssssessssssssesssssssesssssssessssssssssssesssessssssssesssssssessssssasessses 12
Federal Regulatory Compliance and Continuing DiSCIOSUTIE .......ccveeenmernmeemeesseesseersseesesssessseesssesssesssesseeens 13
A ATDIETAEE ettt ettt es st bR AR AR RS R R A AR AR 13
B.  INVESTMENT Of PrOCEEAS ...cuviceirctrsers et sss s ssssss s s s s sssssssssssssnsas 13
€. DISCIOSUIE ettt es ettt ee s s e s s es bR R e R ER R AR bRt 14
D. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) .. enremeeseeneersessessseesssessesssessseesseesssesssessnes 15
REVIEW Of ThEe POLICY ..uveuuieeritreeeteeeseeect ettt ettt ss s s s es e bbb s bbb 15

PNa (0 010 T0) o W0} o T=T0 o 0] | Loy 7PN 16



Debt Management Policy

Introduction

Debt management policies provide written guidance about the amount and type of debt issued by
governments, the issuance process for such debt, and the management of the debt portfolio. A debt
management policy tailored to the needs of the Tennessee Local Development Authority (the
“Authority”): (1) identifies policy goals and demonstrates a commitment to long-term financial
planning; (2) improves the quality of decisions concerning debt issuance; and (3) provides
justification for the structure of debt issuance. Adherence to its debt management policy signals to
rating agencies and the capital markets that the Authority is well-managed and able to meet its
obligations in a timely manner.

Debt levels and their related annual costs are important financial considerations that impact the use
of current resources. An effective debt management policy provides guidelines for the Authority to
manage its debt program in line with those resources.

In 1978, the General Assembly created the Authority [Sections 4-31-101 et seq., Tennessee Code
Annotated]. The Authority is a corporate governmental agency and instrumentality of the State of
Tennessee (the “State”). The Authority is comprised of the Governor, the Secretary of the State, the
State Comptroller of the Treasury, the State Treasurer, the Commissioner of Finance and
Administration, a Senate appointee and a House appointee.

The Authority is authorized to issue debt to (i) loan funds to local governments for sewage treatment
and waterworks (the “State Loan Programs”), capital projects, firefighting equipment, and airport
facilities; (ii) loan funds to certain small business concerns for pollution control equipment; (iii) make
funds available for loans for agricultural enterprises; (iv) make loans to not-for-profit organizations
providing certain mental health, mental retardation, and alcohol and drug services (the Community
Provider Pooled Loan Program or the “CP Program”); (v) make loans to local government units to
finance construction of capital outlay projects for K-12 educational facilities; (vi) make payment on
covered claims against insurers operating in this state which have been deemed insolvent as the
result of a natural disaster; and (vii) make the proceeds available to petroleum underground storage
tank board for purposes of providing for the reimbursement of reasonable and safe cleanup of
petroleum sites. The aggregate amounts outstanding for certain programs are limited as follows:
$10,000,000 for firefighting equipment; $200,000,000 for airport facilities; $50,000,000 for pollution
control equipment; $50,000,000 for mental health, mental retardation, and alcohol and drug services;
$30,000,000 for agricultural enterprises; $15,000,000 for petroleum underground storage tank
cleanup costs; and $75,000,000 for capital outlay projects for K-12 educational facilities.

The Authority issues debt only pursuant to the provisions of the TLDA State Loan Programs General
Bond Resolution adopted by the Authority on August 3, 1982, as amended and supplemented and
restated and readopted on March 14, 1985, and as amended on May 17, 1989. This Policy applies
only to that program. The TLDA has oversight for the State Revolving Fund and State Infrastructure
Loan Programs; however, since debt is not issued for these programs, they are not included in this

policy.
The Division of State Government Finance (SGF) serves as staff to the Authority. The Director of
SGF serves as the Assistant Secretary to the Authority.



Goals and Objectives

The Authority is establishing this debt policy as a tool to ensure that financial resources are adequate
to meet the Authority’s long-term debt program and financial planning. In addition, this Debt
Management Policy (the “Policy”) helps to ensure that financings undertaken by the Authority satisfy
certain clear objective standards designed to protect the Authority’s financial resources and to meet
its long-term capital needs.

A. The Goals of this Policy

To document responsibility for the oversight and management of debt related
transactions;

To define the criteria for the issuance of debt;

To define the types of debt approved for use within the constraints established
by the General Assembly;

To define the appropriate uses of debt;

To define the criteria for evaluating refunding candidates or alternative debt
structures; and

To minimize the cost of issuing and servicing debt.

B. The Objectives of this Policy

To establish clear criteria and promote prudent financial management for the
issuance of all debt obligations;

To identify legal and administrative limitations on the issuance of debt;
To ensure the legal use of the Authority’s debt issuance authority;

To maintain appropriate resources and funding capacity for present and future
capital needs;

To protect and enhance the Authority’s credit rating;
To evaluate debt issuance options;

To promote cooperation and coordination with other stakeholders in the
financing and delivery of services;

To manage interest rate exposure and other risks; and

To comply with federal Regulations and generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”).

Debt Management/General

A. Purpose and Use of Debt Issuance

Debt is to be issued pursuant to the authority of and in full compliance with provisions,
restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the State (including Title 4,
Chapter 31, and Title 68, Chapter 221, Parts 2 and 5, Tennessee Code Annotated), pursuant
to resolutions adopted by the Authority.



e Prior to the issuance of bonds, bond anticipation notes may be issued for the
payment of costs of projects as authorized by the bond authorization and a
resolution of the Authority.

e Bonds may be issued to refund outstanding debt.
B. Debt Capacity Assessment

The dollar amount of debt that the Authority may issue and that may be outstanding for the
State Loan Programs is not limited by statute; however, debt issued for this program shall be
“limited special obligations” of the Authority payable solely from and secured by payments
made by local government units, or state-shared taxes withheld, pursuant to loan program
agreements.

C. Federal Tax Status

o Tax-Exempt Debt - The Authority will use its best efforts to maximize the
amount of debt sold under this Policy using tax-exempt financing based on the
assumptions that tax-exempt interest rates are lower than taxable rates and that
the interest savings outweigh the administrative costs, restrictions on use of
financed projects, and investment constraints.

o Taxable Debt - The Authority will sell taxable debt when necessary to finance
projects not eligible to be financed with tax-exempt debt.

e Legal Limitations on the Use of Debt

o No debt obligation shall be sold to fund the current operation of any state
service or program.

o The proceeds of any debt obligation shall be expended only for the purpose for
which it was authorized and applied to fund loan program agreements only
when the ratio of unobligated state-shared taxes complies with state statutes,
including any pledge of the statutory reserve fund.

e Notes may be issued only when the Comptroller has filed a certificate as
required by TCA Section 4-31-108(f), including the certification that loan
program agreements are in place that will utilize at least 75% of the note
proceeds.

Types of Debt
A. Bonds

The Authority may issue limited special revenue bonds, backed by payment pursuant to loan
program agreements. These bonds may be structured as:

¢ Fixed Interest Rate Bonds - Bonds that have an interest rate that remains
constant throughout the life of the bond.

=  Serial Bonds
= Term Bonds

e Variable Interest Rate Bonds - Bonds which bear a variable interest rate but
do not include any bond which, during the remainder of the term thereof to
maturity, bears interest at a fixed rate. Provision as to the calculation or change
of variable interest rates shall be included in the authorizing resolution.

3



B. Short-Term Debt

Pending the issuance of the definite bonds authorized by the bond authorizations, the
Authority may issue short-term debt. Such debt shall be authorized by resolution of the
Authority. Typically, short-term debt is issued during the construction period to take
advantage of the lower short-term interest rates. Short-term debt will be subsequently
repaid with proceeds from the sale of long-term debt or fees and charges from the
borrowers. Short-term debt may include:

e Bond Anticipation Notes (“BANs”) - BANs are short-term interest-bearing
securities generally issued to finance a capital project during construction.

o Fixed Rate Notes - Notes issued for a period of time less than eight years at a
fixed interest rate.

e Variable Rate Notes - Notes which bear variable interest rates until redeemed.
Provisions as to the calculation or change of variable interest rates shall be
included in the authorizing resolution.

e Commercial Paper (“CP”) - CP is a form of bond anticipation note that has a
maturity up to 270 days, may be rolled to a subsequent maturity date and is
commonly used to finance a capital project during construction. It can be issued
incrementally as funds are needed.

e Revolving Credit Facility - A form of bond anticipation note involving the
extension of a line of credit from a bank. The bank agrees that the revolving
credit facility can be drawn upon incrementally as funds are needed. The draws
upon the line of credit may bear variable interest rates until redeemed.
Provision as to the calculation or change of variable interest rates shall be
included in the authorizing credit agreement.

Debt Management Structure

The Authority shall establish by resolution all terms and conditions relating to the issuance of debt
and will invest all proceeds pursuant to the terms of the Authority’s authorizing resolution and the
State’s investment policy.

A. Term

The term of any debt (including refunding debt) used to purchase or otherwise obtain or
construct any equipment, goods, or structures shall have a reasonably anticipated lifetime of
use equal to or less than the average useful life of the project. The final maturity of the bond
debt should be limited to thirty (30) years after the date of issuance or the date the project is
deemed complete or placed in service, whichever is earlier.

The final maturity of notes and any renewals is limited to eight years from the date of issue
of the original notes unless the Authority has begun repayment of principal and the ultimate
maturity of the notes will not exceed thirty (30) years from the date of first issuance or the
date the project is deemed complete or placed in service, whichever is earlier.

B. Debt Service Structure

Debt issuance shall be planned to achieve level debt service unless otherwise determined by
the Authority. The Authority shall avoid use of bullet or balloon maturities; this does not
include term bonds with mandatory sinking fund requirements.



No debt shall be structured with other than at least level debt service unless such structure
is specifically approved by a majority vote of the members of the Authority.

C. Call Provisions

When issuing new debt, the structure may include a call provision that occurs no later than
ten years from the date of delivery of the bonds. Call provisions should be structured to
provide the maximum flexibility relative to cost. The Authority will avoid the sale of long-
term non-callable bonds absent careful evaluation by the SGF and consultation with the
Financial Advisor with respect to the value of the call option.

D. Original Issuance Discount/Premium

Bonds sold with original issuance discount/premium are permitted with the approval of the
Authority.

Refunding Outstanding Debt

The Authority may refund outstanding bonds by issuing new bonds. Authority staff with assistance
from the Authority’s financial advisor (“Financial Advisor”) shall have the responsibility to analyze
outstanding bond issues for refunding opportunities, whether for economic, tax-status, or project
reasons.

A. Refunding Opportunities
The bonds may be considered for refunding when:
e Advance Refunding:

»  The refunding results in present value savings of at least 4.0% per series of
refunded bonds. Consideration will be given to escrow efficiency when
reviewing refunding candidates.

e Current Refunding:

» The refunding results in present value savings of at least 2% per series of
refunded bonds; or the present value savings per series must be equal to or
greater than twice the cost of issuance allocable to the refunding series.

e Refunding for Other Purposes:

» The refunding of the bonds is necessary due to a change in the use of a
project that would require a change to the tax status of the bonds; or

» The project is sold or no longer in service while still in its amortization
period; or

= Restrictive covenants prevent the issuance of other debt or create other
restrictions on the financial management of the project and revenue
producing activities.

After consultation with the Financial Advisor, the Comptroller may waive the foregoing
refunding considerations given that the sale of refunding bonds will still accomplish cost
savings to the public. Such waiver shall be reported in writing to the Authority at its next
meeting.



B. Term of Refunding Issues

The Authority will refund bonds within the same fiscal year of the term of the originally issued
debt. No backloading of debt will be permitted.

C. Escrow Structuring

The Authority shall structure refunding escrows using legally permitted securities deemed
to be prudent under the circumstances and will endeavor to utilize the least costly
securities unless considerations of risk, reliability and convenience dictate otherwise. The
Authority will take competitive bids on any selected portfolio of securities and will award to
the lowest cost provider giving due regard to considerations of risk and reliability or unless
State and Local Government Series securities (“SLGS”) are purchased directly from the
federal Government. The provider must guarantee the delivery of securities except for
SLGs. Under no circumstances shall an underwriter, agent or financial advisor sell escrow
securities to the Authority from its own account.

D. Arbitrage

The Authority shall take all reasonable steps to optimize escrows and to avoid negative
arbitrage in its refunding subject to the State’s investment policy subject to Section 4-31-
104(6) of the TCA. Any positive arbitrage will be rebated as necessary according to federal
guidelines (see also “Federal Regulatory Compliance and Continuing Disclosure - A.
Arbitrage”).

E. Cost of Issuance

Costs of issuance includes fees paid for professional services provided to the Board in the
debt issuance process, including underwriting fees.

Methods of Sale

A. Competitive

In a competitive sale, the Authority’s bonds shall be awarded to the bidder providing the
lowest true interest cost as long as the bid adheres to the requirements set forth in the
official notice of sale. The competitive sale is the Authority’s preferred method of sale.

B. Negotiated

While the Authority prefers the use of a competitive process, the Authority recognizes that
some securities are best sold through negotiation. The underwriting team will be chosen
and the underwriter’s fees negotiated prior to the sale. See section below titled “Selection
of Underwriting Team (Negotiated Transaction).” In its consideration of a negotiated sale,
the Authority will assess the following factors:

e A structure which may require a strong pre-marketing effort such as a complex
transaction;

e Volatility of market conditions and whether the Authority would be better
served by flexibility in timing a sale;

e Size of the bond sale may limit the number of potential bidders;
e Credit strength of the Authority and that of its borrowers;
e  Whether or not the bonds are issued as variable rate demand obligations;

e Tax status of the bonds; and



o Iflegal or disclosure issues make it advisable in marking bonds
C. Private Placement

From time to time, the Authority may need to consider privately placing its debt. Such
placement shall only be considered for debt transactions where the size is too small or the
structure is too complicated for public debt issuance, the market of purchasers is limited,
and/or will resultin a cost savings to the Authority relative to other methods of debt issuance.

Selection of Underwriting Team (Negotiated Transaction)

If there is an underwriter, the Authority shall require the underwriter to clearly identify itself in
writing, whether in a response to a request for proposals (“RFP”) or in promotional materials
provided to the Authority or otherwise, as an underwriter and not as a financial advisor from the
earliest stages of its relationship with the Authority with respect to that issue. The underwriter must
clarify its primary role as a purchaser of securities in an arm’s-length commercial transaction and
that it has financial and other interests that differ from those of the Authority. The underwriter in a
publicly offered, negotiated sale shall be required to provide pricing information both as to interest
rates and to takedown per maturity to the Authority or its designated official in advance of the pricing
of the debt.

A. Senior Manager

The Authority with assistance from its staff and financial advisor shall select the senior
manager(s) for a proposed negotiated sale. The selection criteria shall include but not be
limited to the following:

e Experience in selling Tennessee debt;
e Ability and experience in managing complex transactions;
e Prior knowledge and experience with the Authority;
o Willingness to risk capital and demonstration of such risk;
e Quality and experience of personnel assigned to the Authority’s engagement;
e Financing ideas presented; and
e Underwriting fees.
B. Co-Manager

Co-managers will be selected on the same basis as the senior manager(s). The number of co-
managers appointed to specific transactions will be a function of transaction size and the
necessity to ensure maximum distribution of the Authority’s bonds. The Secretary or
Assistant Secretary to the Authority will, at his or her discretion, affirmatively determine the
designation policy for each bond issue.

C. Selling Groups

The Authority may use selling groups in certain transactions to maximize the distribution of
bonds to retail investors. Firms eligible to be a member of the selling group, should either
have a public finance department or pricing desk located within the boundaries of the State.
To the extent that selling groups are used, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the
Authority at his or her discretion may make appointments to selling groups as the transaction
dictates.



D. Underwriter’s Counsel

In any negotiated sale of the Authority’s debt in which legal counsel is required to represent
the underwriter, the appointment will be made by the Senior Manager

Credit Quality

The Authority’s debt management activities will be conducted to receive the highest credit ratings
possible, consistent with Authority’s financing objectives.

The Office of the Comptroller of the Treasury through the Division of State Government Finance will
be responsible for the communication of information to the rating agencies and keeping them
informed of significant developments throughout the year. The Office of the Comptroller of the
Treasury through the SGF will schedule rating agency calls and/or visits prior to the issuance of
bonds.

The Office of the Comptroller of the Treasury through the SGF, together with the Financial Advisor,
shall prepare presentations to the rating agencies to assist credit analysts in making an informed
decision.

The Authority, with the assistance of the Financial Advisor, shall be responsible for determining
whether or not a rating shall be requested on a particular financing, and which of the major rating
agencies will be asked to provide such rating.

Security for the TLDA Bond Program

The Security for bonds and notes of the TLDA is the pledge of revenue received by the Authority
from the borrowers and the statutory reserve fund. The moneys and securities on deposit in the
Statutory Fund may only be withdrawn at the request of the Authority. If there has been a
withdrawal from the Statutory Fund in any bond year, the Authority shall deposit in the Statutory
Fund an amount equal to the withdrawal and interest thereon from moneys on deposit in the State
Loan Program Fund or the General Fund.

For the State Loan Program, the security is the pledge of the system revenues, a general obligation
pledge of the borrowing local government, the debt service reserve fund, and the intercept of state-
shared taxes. The debt service reserve fund contains a deposit from the borrower equal to one year
of the maximum annual debt service. State-shared taxes may be taken if the borrower is delinquent
in payments. The intercept of state-shared taxes will be tested periodically.

Credit Enhancements

The Authority will consider the use of credit enhancements on a case-by-case basis, evaluating the
economic benefit versus the cost. Only when clearly demonstrable savings can be shown shall an
enhancement be utilized. The Authority may consider each of the following enhancements as
alternatives by evaluating the cost and benefit of such enhancements:

A. Bond Insurance

The Authority may purchase bond insurance when such purchase by the Authority is deemed
prudent and advantageous. The primary consideration shall be based on whether such
insurance is less costly. For competitive sales, the purchaser of the bonds may be allowed to
determine whether bond insurance will be used and will be included in the bid for the bonds
and will be paid for by the purchaser of the bonds. If the Authority decides to purchase
insurance, it shall do so on a competitive bid basis whenever practicable. In a negotiated sale,
the Authority will select a provider whose bid is most cost effective and will consider the

8



credit quality of the insurer and that the terms and conditions governing the guarantee are
satisfactory to the Authority.

. Letters of Credit

The Authority may enter into a letter-of-credit (“LOC”) agreement when such an agreement
is deemed prudent and advantageous. The Authority will prepare and distribute an RFP to
qualified banks or other qualified financial institutions, which includes terms and conditions
that are acceptable to the Authority. The LOC will be awarded to the bank or financial
institution providing the lowest cost bid with the highest credit quality that meets the criteria
established by the Authority.

Liquidity
For variable rate debt requiring liquidity facilities to protect against remarketing risk, the

Authority will evaluate:

e Alternative forms of liquidity, including direct pay letters of credit, standby
letters of credit, and line of credit, in order to balance the protection offered
against the economic costs associated with each alternative;

e Diversification among liquidity providers, thereby limiting exposure to any
individual liquidity provider;

o All cost components attendant to the liquidity facility, including commitment
fees, standby fees, draw fees, and interest rates charged against liquidity draws;
and

e A comparative analysis and evaluation of the cost of external liquidity providers
compared to the requirements for self-liquidity.

The winning bid will be awarded to the bank or financial institution providing the lowest cost
with the highest credit quality that meets the criteria established by the Authority.

. Use of Structured Products

No interest rate agreements or forward purchase agreements will be considered unless the
Authority has established a policy defining the use of such products before the transaction is
considered.

Risk Assessment

The SGF will evaluate each transaction to assess the types and amounts of risk associated with that
transaction, considering all available means to mitigate those risks. The SGF will evaluate all
proposed transactions for consistency with the objectives and constraints defined in this Policy.
The following risks should be assessed before issuing debt:

A. Change in Public/Private Use

The change in the public/private use of a project that is funded by tax-exempt funds could
potentially cause a bond issue to become taxable.

B. Default Risk

The risk that debt service payments cannot be made by the due date.



C. Liquidity Risk

The risk of having to pay a higher rate to the liquidity provider in the event of a failed

remarketing of short-term debt.

D. Interest Rate Risk

The risk that interest rates will rise, on a sustained basis, above levels that would have been

set if the issue had been fixed.

E. Rollover Risk

The risk of the inability to obtain a suitable liquidity facility at an acceptable price to replace

a facility upon termination or expiration of a contract period

F. Market Risk

The risk that in the event of failed remarketing of short-term debt, the liquidity provider fails.

Transparency

The Authority shall comply with the Tennessee Open Meetings Act, providing adequate public
notice of meetings and specifying on the agenda when matters related to debt issuance will be

considered. All costs (including interest, issuance, continuing, and one-time) shall be disclosed to

the citizens in a timely manner. Additionally, the Authority will provide certain financial
information and operating data by specified dates, and to provide notice of certain enumerated

events with respect to the bonds, pursuant to continuing disclosure undertakings requirements of

the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SOC”) Rule 15c¢2-12. The Authority intends to
maintain transparency by:

e Posting the Official Statement of a bond sale to the Authority’s website within two

weeks of the closing of such sale;

e Preparing and filing with the Division of Local Government Finance (LGF) a copy of

the costs related to the issuance of a bond and other information as required by
Section 9-21-151, of the TCA, within 45 days of the closing of such sale, and

presenting the original of such document to the Authority at its next meeting (see

also “Debt Administration - B. Post Sale”); and

e Electronically submitting through the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s

Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) website the information necessary to
satisfy the Authority’s continuing disclosure requirements for the bonds in a timely

matter (see also “Federal Regulatory Compliance and Continuing Disclosure”).

Professional Services

The Authority requires all professionals engaged to assist in the process of issuing debt to clearly
disclose all compensation and consideration received related to services provided in the debt
issuance process by the Authority. This includes “soft” costs or compensations in lieu of direct

payments.

A. Issuer’s Counsel

The Authority will enter into an engagement letter agreement with each lawyer or law firm
representing the Authority in a debt transaction. No engagement letter is required for any
lawyer who is an employee of the Office of Attorney General and Reporter for the State of

10



Tennessee who serves as counsel to the Authority or of the Office of General Counsel, Office
of the Comptroller of the Treasury, which serves as counsel to the SGF regarding Authority
matters.

. Bond Counsel

Bond counsel shall be engaged through the SGF and serves to assist the Authority in all its
general obligation debt issues under a written agreement.

Financial Advisor

The Financial Advisor shall be engaged through the SGF and serves and assists the Authority
on financial matters under a written agreement. However, the financial advisor shall not be
permitted to bid on, privately place or underwrite an issue for which it is or has been
providing advisory services. The Financial Advisor has a fiduciary duty including a duty of
loyalty and a duty of care.

. Refunding Trustee

The Refunding Trustee shall be appointed by resolution of the Authority adopted prior to the
issuance of any of refunding bonds. The Refunding Trustee will be a bank, trust company or
national banking association that provides Paying Agent and Registrar services.

Dealer

The Authority will enter into a Dealer Agreement with the appointed CP dealer. The Dealer
agrees to offer and sell the CP, on behalf of the Authority, to investors and other entities and
individuals who would normally purchase commercial paper.

Issuing and Paying Agent

The Authority covenants to maintain and provide an Issuing and Paying Agent at all times
while the CP is outstanding. The Authority will enter into an Issuing and Paying Agency
Agreement with an appointed firm. The Issuing and Paying Agent will be a bank, trust
company or national banking association that has trust powers.

. Credit/Liquidity Provider

The Authority shall enter into a Credit Agreement with the appointed credit provider. A
credit provider shall be a bank or lending institution that extends credit to the Authority in
the form of a revolving credit facility, a line of credit, a loan or a similar credit product or as
a liquidity facility for CP.

. Verification Agent

The Verification Agent will be selected through a request for proposal process prior to the
issuance of refunding bonds. The Verification Agent primarily verifies the cash flow
sufficiency to the call date of the escrowed securities to pay the principal and interest due on
refunded bonds.

Escrow Bidding Agent

The Escrow Bidding Agent will be selected through a request for proposal process prior to
the issuance of refunding bonds. With regards to structuring the refunding escrow with
investment securities, the Escrow Bidding Agent will prepare bidding specifications, solicit
bids for investment securities, review and evaluate responses to the bids, accept and award
bids, and provide final certification as to completion of requirements.

11



Potential Conflicts of Interest

Professionals involved in a debt transaction hired or compensated by the Authority shall be required
to disclose to the Authority existing client and business relationships between and among the
professionals to a transaction (including but not limited to financial advisor, swap advisor, bond
counsel, swap counsel, trustee, paying agent, underwriter, counterparty, and remarketing agent), as
well as conduit issuers, sponsoring organizations and program administrators and other issuers
whom they may serve. This disclosure shall include such information that is reasonably sufficient to
allow the Authority to appreciate the significance of the relationships.

Professionals who become involved in a debt transaction as a result of a bid submitted in a widely
and publicly advertised competitive sale conducted using an industry standard, electronic bidding
platform are not subject to this disclosure provision. No disclosure is required if such disclosure
would violate any rule or regulation of professional conduct.

Debt Administration

A. Planning for Sale

Before the issuance of bonds, the procedures outlined below will be followed:

Prior to submitting a bond resolution for approval, the Director of the SGF (the
“Director”), with the assistance of the Financial Advisor, will present to staff of
the members of the Authority information concerning the purpose of the
financing, the estimated amount of financing, the proposed structure of the
financing, the proposed method of sale for the financing, members of the
proposed financing team, and an estimate of all the costs associated with the
financing, and;

In addition, in the case of a proposed refunding, proposed use of credit
enhancement, or proposed use of variable rate debt, the Director will present
the rationale for using the proposed debt structure, an estimate of the expected
savings associated with the transaction and a discussion of the potential risks
associated with the proposed structure.

The Director (with the assistance of staff in the SGF) with the advice of Bond
Counsel, the Financial Advisor, and other members of the financing team, will
prepare a Preliminary Official Statement describing the transaction and the
security for the debt that is fully compliant with all legal requirements.

B. Preparing for Bond Closing

In preparation for the bond closing, the procedures outlined below will be followed:

The Director (with the assistance of staff in the SGF), Bond Counsel, and the
Financial Advisor, along with other members of the financing team will prepare
an Official Statement describing the transaction and the security for the debt
that is fully compliant with all legal requirements.

The Financial Advisor will provide a closing memorandum with written
instructions on transfer and flow of funds.

The Authority’s staff, with assistance from the Financial Advisor, will evaluate
each bond sale after completion to assess the following: costs of issuance
including the underwriter’s compensation, pricing of the bonds in terms of the

12



overall interest cost and on a maturity-by-maturity basis, and the distribution of
bonds and sales credit, if applicable.

e The Director will present a post-sale report to the members of the Authority
describing the transaction and setting forth all the costs associated with the
transaction.

e Within 45 days from closing, the Director will prepare a Form CT-0253 - “Report
on Debt Obligation” outlining costs related to the issuance and other
information set forth in Section 9-21-151 of the TCA, and also present the
original at the next meeting of the Authority and file a copy with the LGF.

o The Director will establish guidelines and procedures for tracking the flow of all
bond proceeds, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, over the life of bonds
reporting to the Internal Revenue Service all arbitrage earnings associated with
the financing and any tax liability that may be owed.

e The Post-Issuance Compliance (“PIC”) team will meet annually to review
matters related to compliance and complete the PIC checklist.

e Asapart of the PIC procedures, the Director (with the assistance of staff in the
SGF) will, no less than annually, request confirmation from the responsible
department that there has been no change in use of tax-exempt financed
facilities.

Federal Regulatory Compliance and Continuing Disclosure
A. Arbitrage

The SGF will comply with arbitrage requirements on invested tax-exempt bond funds.
Proceeds that are to be used to finance construction expenditures are exempted from the
filing requirements, provided that the proceeds are spent in accordance with requirements
established by the IRS. The Authority will comply with all of its tax certificates for tax-exempt
financings by monitoring the arbitrage earnings on bond proceeds on an interim basis and by
rebating all positive arbitrage when due, pursuant to Internal Revenue Code, Section 148.
The Authority currently contracts with an arbitrage consultant to prepare these calculations,
when needed. The Authority will also retain all records relating to debt transactions for as
long as the debt is outstanding, plus three years after the final redemption date of the
transaction.

B. Investment of Proceeds

Any proceeds or other funds available for investment by the Authority must be invested per
Section 4-31-104(6) of the TCA, subject to any restrictions required pursuant to the next
sentence or pursuant to any applicable bond issuance authorization. Compliance with
federal tax code arbitrage requirements relating to invested tax-exempt bond funds will be
maintained. Compliance with arbitrage requirements on invested tax-exempt bond funds will
be maintained.

Proceeds used to refund outstanding long-term debt shall be placed in an irrevocable
refunding trust fund with the Refunding Trustee. The investments (i) shall not include
mutual funds or unit investment trusts holding such obligations, (ii) are rated not lower
than the second highest rating category of both Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and
Standard & Poor’s Global rating services and (iii) shall mature and bear interest at such

13



times and such amounts as will be sufficient, together with other moneys to pay the
remaining defeasance requirements of the bonds to be redeemed.

Disclosure

The Authority will disclose on EMMA the State’s and the Authority’s audited Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report as well as certain financial information and operating data required
by the continuing disclosure undertakings for the outstanding bonds no later than January
31st of each year. The Authority will also, in accordance with the continuing disclosure
undertakings, disclose on EMMA within ten business days after the occurrence of the
following events relating to the bonds to which the continuing disclosure undertakings apply:

Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

Nonpayment-related defaults, if material.

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.
Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.
Substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform.

Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed
or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status
of such bonds or other material events affecting the tax status of such bonds.

Modifications to rights of bondholders, if material.
Bond calls, if material, and tender offers.
Defeasances.

Release, substitution or sale of property securing the repayment of the bonds, if
material.

Rating changes
Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the State.

Consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Authority
or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Authority, other than in the
course of ordinary business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake
such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such
actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material.

Appointment of successor trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material.

The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule 15¢2-12 of
the Securities Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations that
could impact an issuer’s financial condition or security holder’s rights. The amendments
add two events to the list of events that must be included in any continuing disclosure
agreement that is entered into on or after February 27, 2019:

Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material,
or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other

14



similar terms of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of
which affect security holders, if material; and

e Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or
obligated person, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

D. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

The Authority will comply and prepare its financial reports in accordance with the standard
accounting practices adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and with
the accounting policies established by the Department of Finance and Administration when
applicable.

Review of the Policy

The debt policy guidelines outlined herein are only intended to provide general direction regarding
the future use and execution of debt. The Authority maintains the right to modify these guidelines
and may make exceptions to any of them at any time to the extent that the execution of such debt
achieves the Authority’s goals.

This policy will be reviewed by the Authority no less frequently than annually. At that time, the
Director will present any recommendations for any amendments, deletions, additions,
improvement, or clarification.

15



Adoption of the Policy

After a public hearing on December 7, 2011, the Authority adopted this Policy, effective December
7,2011.

After a public hearing on May 11, 2017, the Board adopted the amended Policy on May 11, 2017,
effective May 11,2017,

Aftera public hearing on July 22, 2021 the Board adopted the amended Policy on July 22,2021, effective
July 22, 2021.

Jﬂ ;

Vice-Chair v
Tennessee Local Development Authority

16



APPENDIX A

Annual Review

The Authority has reviewed and accepted the Debt Management Policy on:

October 8, 2014
November 19, 2015
July 20, 2020

17



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES

Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Loan Program

Funds Available for Loan Obligation

July 26, 2022

Unobligated Balance as of June 15, 2022

Increases:
FFY 2021 EPA Capitalization Grant (project dollars)*
FFY 2021 State match budgeted of total required

Unobligated Balance as of July 26, 2022

Decreases:
City of Cleveland
City of Oak Ridge
Town of Thompson's Station
Town of Thompson's Station
Town of Smyrna

Remaining Funds Available for Loan Obligations as of July 26, 2022

Loan Number

Amount

Loan Number

9,957,500
1,991,500

Amount

SRF 2022-473
SRF 2021-455
CG9 2022-469
SRF 2022-470
CG20 2022-474

*: TDEC did not receive the requested supplemental to match the full grant. TDEC is only able to match 43% of the FFY21 grant.

A A A A A

4,650,000
1,900,000
5,000,000
10,400,000
800,000

136,950,682

11,949,000

148,899,682

(22,750,000)

126,149,682



FACT SHEET
July 26, 2022

Borrower: City of Cleveland

Project Number: SRF 2022-473

Requested SRF Funding: $4,650,000

Term: 20 years

Rate: 1.33% = 1.66% X 80% (Tier 3)
Project:

WWTP Improvements/Advanced Treatment (Construction of an ultraviolet disinfection system at the
Hiwassee River WWTP).

Total Project Cost: $4,650,000
Project Funding:
SRF Loan Principal $4,650,000
Local Funds $ -0-
Other Funds $ -0-
County: Bradley County
Consulting Engineer: J.R. Wauford & Company Consulting Engineers, Inc.
Priority Ranking List: FY 2021
Priority Ranking: 7 of 531
Public Meeting: 04/07/2022

Financial Information:

Operating Revenues: $33,314,124
Current Rate: $37.63

Financial Review Rate: $37.63

Effective Rates, if applicable: N/A

Residential User Charge: 5,000 gal/month
Customer Base: 19,893

Audit Report Filed: 12/27/2021 (Timely)
Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 03/09/2022
Updated Financial Sufficiency Review: N/A

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).

' The Project ranked #7 of 53 on the 2021 Priority Ranking List (PRL).



FACT SHEET

July 26, 2022
Additional Security

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year: $6,415,127

MADS: Prior Obligations: $2,917,697
Proposed loan(s):
SRF 2022-473 $ 264,920
DWF 2022-247 $ 47,002
Totals $3,229,619

MADS as a percentage of SSTs: 50.34%



REPRESENTATION OF
LOANS AND STATE-SHARED TAXES
CITY OF CLEVELAND

SRF 2022-473

As security for payments due under a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Agreement, a local government
pledges user fees, charges, and ad valorem taxes as necessary to meet its obligations under a SRF Loan
Agreement. As an additional security for such payments due, a local government pledges and assigns its
unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to maximum annual debt service (MADS)

requirements.

1. State-Shared Taxes

The total amount of SSTs, as identified pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-31-105(c)(2), received by the

local government in the prior fiscal year of the State is $

2. Prior Obligations

6415,127.

(a.) Prior SRF loans which have been funded or approved for which the Local Government has pledged

its SSTs are as follows:

Loan Type Loan # Base Loan* Principal MADS**
Forgiveness*
SRF/Sewer CW0 2013-319 $1,374,972 $451,020 $76,992
SRF/Sewer SRF 2013-320 $8,169,388 $0 $457,440
SRF/Sewer CG4 2015-349 $2,325,000 $175,000 $133,092
SRF/Water DG2 2014-151 $2,000,000 $500,000 $115,812
SRF/Water DW6 2017-192 $798,756 $199,689 $46,764
SRF/Water DWEF 2016-172 $2,889,229 $0 $159,720
SRF/Water DWF 2017-193 $195,000 $0 $11,400
SRF/Sewer CG3 2017-379 $104,897 $5,521 $5,724
SRF/Water DWEF 2018-205 $430,000 $0 $24,456
SRF/Sewer CW6 2018-415 $884,206 $98,245 $51,432
SRF/Sewer SRF 2018-416 $491,390 $0 $28,620
SRF/Sewer SRF 2018-417 $10,000,000 $0 $583,476
SRF/Sewer CW7 2019-431 $1,593,900 $177,100 $91,152
SRF/Sewer SRF 2018-417-01 $10,000,000 $0 $537,540

* If applicable, the original approved amount is adjusted for decreases and approved increases
**MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

The total MADS from section 2(a.) having a lien on SSTs is $2,323,620.

(b.) Other prior obligations which have been funded or approved for which the local government has
pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Type of Obligation Identifying # Loan Amount Principal MADS
Forgiveness
QSCB BFC01000 $4,160,000 $0 $594,077
TLDA/Public Health
TLDA/Transportation

City of Cleveland SRF 2022-473 — Revised November 2021 I 6




The total MADS from section 2(b.) having a lien on SSTs is $594,077.

(c.) The total MADS from prior obligations having a lien on SSTs [subsections 2(a)+2(b)] is $2.917,697.
3. Loan Requests

The loan(s) which have been applied for and for which state-shared taxes will be pledged:

Loan Type Loan # Anticipated Base Loan Principal Anticipated
Interest Rate Forgiveness MADS
SRF/Sewer SRF 2022-473 1.33% $4,650,000 $0 $264,920
SRF/Water DWF 2022-247 1.33% $825,000 $0 $47,002

The anticipated total maximum annual pledge of state-shared taxes pursuant to loan request(s) is

$311,922,

4. Unobligated SSTs
The amount set forth in section (1) less the total amounts set forth in sections 2 and 3 is $3,185,508.

The Local government hereby represents the information presented above is accurate and
understands that funding for the loan request(s) presented is contingent upon approval by the TLDA.

W~
Duly signed by an authorized representative of the Local Government on this / L/t day of

JUne

This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

2022.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

BY:EO%

Tim Henderson, President/CfO of Cleveland Utilities board

City of Cleveland SRF 2022-473 — Revised November 2021 7




REQUIREMENT FOR REPORT ON DEBT REQUIREMENT
(FORM CT-0253)
CITY OF CLEVELAND
SRF 2022-473

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134, a Report on Debt Obligation (the "Report”) must be prepared for
all debt obligations issued or entered into by any public entity and filed with its governing body with a copy
sent to the Office of State and Local Finance/Comptroller of the Treasury for the State of Tennessee. The
purpose of the Report is to provide clear and concise information to members of the governing or legislative
body that authorized and is responsible for the debt issued.

Public entities that fail to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134 are not permitted
to enter into any further debt obligations until they have complied with the law. A State Revolving Fund
(SRF) loan program applicant that is not in compliance with this law should file the Report as soon as
possible and provide notification of filing to the SRF loan program so that it may proceed with the loan
application. Instructions on how to file the Report are located in the “Debt” category for “Local Finance” on
the website of the Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury.

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) — Required Disclosure

Local governments that issue municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, should be aware that the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities
Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations that could impact an issuer’s financial
condition or security holder's rights. The amendments add two events to the list of events that must be
included in any continuing disclosure agreement that is entered into after the compliance date:

e Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation
of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material; and

e Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events
under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which reflect
financial difficulties.

To learn how to report these new disclosures please refer to the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access
EMMA® website (emma.msrb.org).

The applicant, City of Cleveland, attests that it is in compliance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134 for
its debt obligations and understands that the Report is required to be filed once the SRF loan has
been approved by the Tennessee Local Development Authority and the agreement has been
executed by the borrower. The applicant further acknowledges that it may be responsible to perform
continuing disclosure undertakings related to SEC Rule 15¢2-12. Local governments should always

GAC22

Tim Henderson, President/CEO of Cleveland Utilities board Date
This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

City of Cleveland SRF 2022-473 — Revised November 2021 ; 8



FACT SHEET
July 26, 2022

Borrower: City of Oak Ridge

Project Number: SRF 2021-455

Requested SRF Funding: $1,900,000

Term: 20 years

Rate: 2.42% = 2.42% X 100% (Tier 4)
Project:

Collection System Rehabilitation (Rehabilitation of the sewer collection system in the southeastern
portion of the city).

Total Project Cost: $1,900,000
Project Funding:
SRF Loan Principal $1,900,000
Local Funds $ -0-
Other Funds $ -0-
County: Anderson and Roane Counties
Consulting Engineer: LDA Engineering
Priority Ranking List: FY 2019
Priority Ranking: 46 of 83"
Public Meeting: 01/20/2021

Financial Information:

Operating Revenues: $22,141,678
Current Rate: $59.33

Financial Review Rate: $59.33

Effective Rates, if applicable: N/A

Residential User Charge: 5,000 gal/month
Customer Base: 11,446

Audit Report Filed: 12/31/2021 (Timely)
Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 11/24/2020
Updated Financial Sufficiency Review: 05/31/2022

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).

' The Project ranked #46 of 83 on the 2019 Priority Ranking List (PRL).



FACT SHEET
July 26, 2022
Additional Security

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year: $4,512,472

MADS: Prior Obligations: $1,314,312
Proposed loan(s):
SRF 2021-455 $ 119,931
DWF 2022-253 $ 1,904,145
Totals $3,338,388

MADS as a percentage of SSTs: 73.98%



REPRESENTATION OF

CITY OF OAK RIDGE
SRF 2021-455

LOANS AND STATE-SHARED TAXES

As security for payments due under a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Agreement, a local
government pledges user fees, charges, and ad valorem taxes as necessary to meet its
obligations under a SRF Loan Agreement. As an additional security for such payments due,
a local government pledges and assigns its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an
amount equal to maximum annual debt service (MADS) requirements.

1. State-Shared Taxes

The total amount of SSTs, as identified pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-31-105(c)(2),
received by the local government in the prior fiscal year of the State is $4,512,472.

2. Prior Obligations
(a.) Prior SRF loans which have been funded or approved for which the Local Government
has pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Loan Type Loan # Base Loan* Principal MADS**
Forgiveness*
SRF/Sewer CW1 2013-324 $3,590,032 $398,892 $201,024
SRF/Sewer SRF 2013-325 $12,683,578 $0 $708,504
SRF/Sewer SRF 2014-337 $2,691,716 $0 $158,832
SRF/Sewer CG4 2017-356 $1,788,572 $134,623 $107,460
SRF/Sewer SRF 2017-396 $2,335,805 $0 $138,492

* If applicable, the original approved amount is adjusted for decreases and approved increases
**MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

The total MADS from section 2(a.) having a lien on SSTs is $1,314,312.

(b.) Other prior obligations which have been funded or approved for which the local
government has pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Type of Obligation

Identifying #

Loan Amount

Principal
Forgiveness

MADS

QZAB/QSCB

TLDA/Public Health

TLDA/Transportation

The total MADS from section 2(b.) having a lien on SSTs is $0.

(c.) The total MADS from prior obligations having a lien on SSTs [subsections 2(a)+2(b)]
is $1,314,312.

3. Loan Requests
The loan(s) which have been applied for and for which state-shared taxes will be pledged:

Loan Type Loan # Anticipated Base Loan Principal Anticipated
Interest Rate Forgiveness MADS
SRF/Sewer SRF 2021-455 2.42% $1,900,000 $0 $119,931
SRF/Water DWF 2022-253 2.48% $30,000,000 $0 $1,904,145




The anticipated total maximum annual pledge of state-shared taxes pursuant to loan
request(s) is

$2,024,076.

4. Unobligated SSTs

The amount set forth in section (1) less the total amounts set forth in sections 2 and 3 is
$1,174,084,

The Local government hereby represents the information presented above is
accurate and understands that funding for the loan request(s) presented is
contingent upon approval by the TLDA.

Duly signed by an authorized representative of the Local Government on this 21st
day of June, 2022.

This is the Comptroller's certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

——T
v I Siref

" Warren L. Gczéjﬁ, Mayor /

City Of Oak Ridge SRF 2021-455 Loan Application - Revised November 2021 | 2



REQUIREMENT FOR REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
(FORM CT-0253)
CITY OF OAK RIDGE
SRF 2021-455

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134, a Report on Debt Obligation (the “Report”) must be
prepared for all debt obligations issued or entered into by any public entity and filed with its
governing body with a copy sent to the Office of State and Local Finance/Comptroller of the
Treasury for the State of Tennessee. The purpose of the Report is to provide clear and concise
information to members of the governing or legislative body that authorized and is responsible
for the debt issued.

Public entities that fail to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134 are
not permitted to enter into any further debt obligations until they have complied with the law.
A State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program applicant that is not in compliance with this law
should file the Report as soon as possible and provide notification of filing to the SRF loan
program so that it may proceed with the loan application. Instructions on how to file the
Report are located in the “"Debt” category for “Local Finance” on the website of the Tennessee
Comptroller of the Treasury.

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) - Required Disclosure

Local governments that issue municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, should be
aware that the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule
15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations
that could impact an issuer’s financial condition or security holder’s rights. The amendments
add two events to the list of events that must be included in any continuing disclosure
agreement that is entered into after the compliance date:

e Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar
terms of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect
security holders, if material; and

o Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated
person, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

To learn how to report these new disclosures please refer to the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal
Market Access EMMA® website (emma.msrb.org).

The applicant, _City of Oak Ridge, attests that it is in compliance with Tenn. Code
Ann. § 9-21-134 for its debt obligations and understands that the Report is required
to be filed once the SRF loan has been approved by the Tennessee Local
Development Authority and the agreement has been executed by the borrower. The
applicant further acknowledges that it may be responsible to perform continuing

disclosure undertakings re to SEC Rule 15c2-12. Local governments should
always consult bond goungel in order o obtain advice on appropriate disclosures

related to this rule. - /
J June 21, 2022

Warren L. Géoch, Mayor Date
This is the Comptroller’s certificate as\véquired by TCA 4-31-108.

City Of Oak Ridge SRF 2021-455 Loan Application — Revised November 2021 ] 8



FACT SHEET

JULY 26, 2022
Borrower: Town of Thompson's Station
Project Number: CG9 2022-469
Requested SRF Funding: $5,000,000
Term: 20 years
Rate: 1.96% = (2.26% x 100%) -(0.3%) (Tier 4)

Project:

Green - WWTP Expansion/Secondary Treatment (Expansion of the existing WWTP from 0.47 MGD to
1.0 MGD).

Total Project Cost: $18,170,000
Project Funding:
SRF Loan Principal $ 5,000,000
Local Funds $ 2,770,000
Other Funds (SRF 2022-470) $10,400,000
County: Williamson County
Consulting Engineer: Barge Design Solutions, Inc.
Priority Ranking List: FY 2020
Priority Ranking: 63 of 64"
Public Meeting: 02/23/2022

Financial Information:

Operating Revenues: $1,303,682

Current Rate: $69.50

Financial Review Rate: $68.79

Effective Rates, if applicable: N/A

Residential User Charge: 5,000 gal/month
Customer Base: 1,862

Audit Report Filed: 12/17/2021 (Timely)
Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 02/01/2022
Updated Financial Sufficiency Review: N/A

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).

" The Project ranked #63 of 64 on the 2020 Priority Ranking List (PRL).



FACT SHEET
JULY 26, 2022
Additional Security

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year: $684,003

MADS: Prior Obligations: $ -0-
Proposed loan(s):
CG9 2022-469 $302,395
SRF 2022-470 $646,824
Totals $949,219

MADS as a percentage of SSTs: 138.77%



REPRESENTATION OF
LOANS AND STATE-SHARED TAXES
TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION

CG9 2022-469

As security for payments due under a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Agreement, a local government
pledges user fees, charges, and ad valorem taxes as necessary to meet its obligations under a SRF
Loan Agreement. As an additional security for such payments due, a local government pledges and
assigns its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to maximum annual debt service

(MADS) requirements.

1. State-Shared Taxes

The total amount of SSTs, as identified pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-31-105(c)(2), received by

the local government in the prior fiscal year of the State is $

2. Prior Obligations

684,003.

(a.) Prior SRF loans which have been funded or approved for which the Local Government has
pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Loan Type

Loan #

Base Loan*

Principal
Forgiveness*

MADS**

SRF/Sewer

* If applicable, the original approved amount is adjusted for decreases and approved increases
**MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

The total MADS from section 2(a.) having a lien on SSTs is $0.

(b.) Other prior obligations which have been funded or approved for which the local government
has pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Type of Obligation

Identifying #

Loan Amount

Principal
Forgiveness

MADS

QZAB/QSCB

TLDA/Public Health

TLDA/Transportation

The total MADS from section 2(b.) having a lien on SSTs is $0.

(c.) The total MADS from prior obligations having a lien on SSTs [subsections 2(a)+2(b)] is $0.

3. Loan Requests

The loan(s) which have been applied for and for which state-shared taxes will be pledged:

Loan Type Loan # Anticipated Base Loan Principal Anticipated
Interest Rate Forgiveness MADS
SRF/Sewer CG9 2022-469 1.96% $5,000,000 $0 $302,395
SRF/Sewer SRF 2022-470 2.26% $10,400,000 $0 $646,824

Town of Thompson's Station CGg 2022-469 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 I 6




The anticipated total maximum annual pledge of state-shared taxes pursuant to loan request(s) is
$949,219.

4. Unobligated SSTs
The amount set forth in section (1) less the total amounts set forth in sections 2 and 3 is $-265,216.

The Local government hereby represents the information presented above is accurate and
understands that funding for the loan request(s) presented is contingent upon approval by the
TLDA.

Duly signed by an authorized representative of the Local Government on this 14 day of June,
2022,

This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT )

BY:

Corey Napier, Mayor

Town of Thompson's Station CGg 2022-469 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 ! 7



REQUIREMENT FOR REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
(FORM CT-0253)

TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION
CG9 2022-469

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §8 9-21-134, a Report on Debt Obligation (the “Report”) must be prepared
for all debt obligations issued or entered into by any public entity and filed with its governing body
with a copy sent to the Office of State and Local Finance/Comptroller of the Treasury for the State of
Tennessee. The purpose of the Report is to provide clear and concise information to members of the
governing or legislative body that authorized and is responsible for the debt issued.

Public entities that fail to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code Ann.8 9-21-134 are not
permitted to enter into any further debt obligations until they have complied with the law. A State
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program applicant that is not in compliance with this law should file the
Report as soon as possible and provide notification of filing to the SRF loan program so that it may
proceed with the loan application. Instructions on how to file the Report are located in the “Debt”
category for “Local Finance” on the website of the Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury.

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) - Required Disclosure

Local governments that issue municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, should be aware that
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities
Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations that could impact an issuer’s
financial condition or security holder's rights. The amendments add two events to the list of events
that must be included in any continuing disclosure agreement that is entered into after the
compliance date:

e Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or agreement
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial
obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material;
and

o Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar
events under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of
which reflect financial difficulties.

To learn how to report these new disclosures please refer to the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market
Access EMMA® website (emma.msrb.org).

The applicant, Town of Thompson's Station, attests that it is in compliance with Tenn. Code
Ann. § 9-21-134 for its debt obligations and understands that the Report is required to be filed
once the SRF loan has been approved by the Tennessee Local Development Authority and the
agreement has been executed by the borrower. The applicant further acknowledges that it
may be responsible to perform continuing disclosure undertakings related to SEC Rule 15¢c2-12.
Local gover meﬁé‘spouldatways consult bond counsel in order to obtain advice on

appropriate disclosyrs ed-to this rule.
7 Q/U/\uz/ I“}I 26 )

Copelerapier, Mayor \ " Date

Town of Thompson's Station CGg 2022-469 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 r 8




FACT SHEET

JULY 26, 2022
Borrower: Town of Thompson's Station
Project Number: SRF 2022-470
Requested SRF Funding: $10,400,000
Term: 20 years
Rate: 2.26% = 2.26% x 100% (Tier 4)

Project:

Green - WWTP Expansion/Secondary Treatment (Expansion of the existing WWTP from 0.47 MGD to
1.0 MGD).

Total Project Cost: $18,170,000
Project Funding:
SRF Loan Principal $10,400,000
Local Funds $ 2,770,000
Other Funds (CG9 2022-469) $ 5,000,000
County: Williamson County
Consulting Engineer: Barge Design Solutions, Inc.
Priority Ranking List: FY 2020
Priority Ranking: 63 of 64"
Public Meeting: 02/23/2022

Financial Information:

Operating Revenues: $1,303,682

Current Rate: $69.50

Financial Review Rate: $68.79

Effective Rates, if applicable: N/A

Residential User Charge: 5,000 gal/month
Customer Base: 1,862

Audit Report Filed: 12/17/2021 (Timely)
Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 02/01/2022
Updated Financial Sufficiency Review: N/A

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).

" The Project ranked #63 of 64 on the 2020 Priority Ranking List (PRL).



FACT SHEET
JULY 26, 2022
Additional Security

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year: $684,003

MADS: Prior Obligations: $ -0-
Proposed loan(s):
SRF 2022-470 $646,824
CG9 2022-469 $302,395
Totals $949,219

MADS as a percentage of SSTs: 138.77%



REPRESENTATION OF
LOANS AND STATE-SHARED TAXES
TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION

SRF 2022-470

As security for payments due under a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Agreement, a local government
pledges user fees, charges, and ad valorem taxes as necessary to meet its obligations under a SRF
Loan Agreement. As an additional security for such payments due, a local government pledges and
assigns its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to maximum annual debt service

(MADS) requirements.

1. State-Shared Taxes

The total amount of SSTs, as identified pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-31-105(c)(2), received by

the local government in the prior fiscal year of the State is $

2. Prior Obligations

684.003.

(a.) Prior SRF loans which have been funded or approved for which the Local Government has
pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Loan Type

Loan #

Base Loan*

Principal
Forgiveness*

MADS**

SRF/Sewer

* |f applicable, the original approved amount is adjusted for decreases and approved increases
**MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

The total MADS from section 2(a.) having a lien on SSTs is $0.

(b.) Other prior obligations which have been funded or approved for which the local government
has pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Type of Obligation

Identifying #

Loan Amount

Principal
Forgiveness

MADS

QZAB/QSCB

TLDA/Public Health

TLDA/Transportation

The total MADS from section 2(b.) having a lien on SSTs is $0.

(c.) The total MADS from prior obligations having a lien on SSTs [subsections 2(a)+2(b)] is $_0.

3. Loan Requests

The loan(s) which have been applied for and for which state-shared taxes will be pledged:

Loan Type Loan # Anticipated Base Loan Principal Anticipated
Interest Rate Forgiveness MADS
SRF/Sewer SRF 2022-470 2.26% $10,400,000 $0 $646,824
SRF/Sewer CG9 2022-469 1.96% $5,000,000 $0 $302,395

Town of Thompson's Station SRF 2022-470 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 ﬁ 6




The anticipated total maximum annual pledge of state-shared taxes pursuant to loan request(s) is
$949,219.

4. Unobligated SSTs
The amount set forth in section (1) less the total amounts set forth in sections 2 and 3 is $-265,216.

The Local government hereby represents the information presented above is accurate and
understands that funding for the loan request(s) presented is contingent upon approval by the
TLDA.

Duly signed by an authorized representative of the Local Government on this 14th day of
June, 2022.

This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

LOCAL GOVERN

BY:

Corey/Nra/pier, Mayor

Town of Thompson’s Station SRF 2022-470 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 | 7



REQUIREMENT FOR REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
(FORM CT-0253)

TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION
SRF 2022-470

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134, a Report on Debt Obligation (the “Report”) must be prepared
for all debt obligations issued or entered into by any public entity and filed with its governing body
with a copy sent to the Office of State and Local Finance/Comptroller of the Treasury for the State of
Tennessee. The purpose of the Report is to provide clear and concise information to members of the
governing or legislative body that authorized and is responsible for the debt issued.

Public entities that fail to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code Ann.8 9-21-134 are not
permitted to enter into any further debt obligations until they have complied with the law. A State
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program applicant that is not in compliance with this law should file the
Report as soon as possible and provide notification of filing to the SRF loan program so that it may
proceed with the loan application. Instructions on how to file the Report are located in the “Debt”
category for “Local Finance” on the website of the Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury.

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) - Required Disclosure

Local governments that issue municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, should be aware that
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities
Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations that could impact an issuer’s
financial condition or security holder's rights. The amendments add two events to the list of events
that must be included in any continuing disclosure agreement that is entered into after the
compliance date:

e Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or agreement
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial
obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material;
and

e Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar
events under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of
which reflect financial difficulties.

To learn how to report these new disclosures please refer to the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market
Access EMMA® website (emma.msrb.org).

The applicant, Town of Thompson's Station, attests that it is in compliance with Tenn. Code
Ann. § 9-21-134 for its debt obligations and understands that the Report is required to be filed
once the SRF loan has been approved by the Tennessee Local Development Authority and the
agreement has been executed by the borrower. The applicant further acknowledges that it
may be responsible to perform continuing disclosure undertakings related to SEC Rule 15¢2-12.
Local govern ents shoulld always—consult bond counsel in order to obtain advice on
appropriatedisclos his rule.

Lo 1] 208 2—

Coreyﬁapier, Mayor Date
\

Town of Thompson's Station SRF 2022-470 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 l 8



Borrower:
Project Number:

FACT SHEET
JULY 26, 2022

Town of Smyrna
CG202022-474

Requested SRF Funding: $800,000

Term: 20 years

Rate: 1.92% = (2.02% x 100%) - (0.1%) (Tier 4)
Project:

Green - I/l Correction (Rehabilitate approximately 5,000 LF of existing 6-inch to 10-inch diameter
sewer lines using the pipe bursting, CIPP, and open cut methods; replace 23 existing manholes; and

install 6 new manholes).

Total Project Cost:
Project Funding:

SRF Loan Principal
Local Funds
Other Funds

County:

Consulting Engineer:
Priority Ranking List:
Priority Ranking:
Public Meeting:

Financial Information:

Operating Revenues:

Current Rate:

Financial Review Rate:

Effective Rates, if applicable:
Residential User Charge:

Customer Base:

Audit Report Filed:

Initial Financial Sufficiency Review:
Updated Financial Sufficiency Review:

$1,102,000

$ 800,000
$ 302,000
$ 0-

Rutherford County
Thomas & Hutton
FY 2020

39 of 64"
04/12/2022

$22,920,501

$32.36

$31.42

N/A

5,000 gal/month
17,355

12/16/2021 (Timely)
03/11/2022

N/A

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).

' The Project ranked #39 of 64 on the 2020 Priority Ranking List (PRL).



FACT SHEET

JULY 26, 2022
Additional Security

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year: $7,044,268

MADS: Prior Obligations: $2,409,213
Proposed loan(s):
CG20 2022-474 $ 48,202
Totals $2,457,415

MADS as a percentage of SSTs: 34.89%



REPRESENTATION OF
LOANS AND STATE-SHARED TAXES
TOWN OF SMYRNA
CG20 2022-474

As security for payments due under a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Agreement, a local government
pledges user fees, charges, and ad valorem taxes as necessary to meet its obligations under a SRF
Loan Agreement. As an additional security for such payments due, a local government pledges and
assigns its unobligated state-shared taxes (S5Ts) in an amount equal to maximum annual debt service
(MADS) requirements.

1. State-Shared Taxes
The total amount of SSTs, as identified pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. 8§ 4-31-105(c)(2), received by
the local government in the prior fiscal year of the State is $7,044,268.

2. Prior Obligations

(a.) Prior SRF loans which have been funded or approved for which the Local Government has
pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Loan Type Loan # Base Loan* Principal MADS**
Forgiveness*
SRF/Sewer CGA 2009-234 $3,450,000 $2,300,000 $212,191
SRF/Sewer CGO0 2010-258 $344,426 $86,106 $20,796
SRF/Sewer CW4 2014-343 $190,683 $14,352 $7,620
SRF/Water DW4 2015-154 $83,376  $27,792 $4,602
SRF/Sewer CG7 2019-423 $2,700,000 $300,000 $115,116
SRF/Sewer SRF 2020-438 $18,000,000 $0 $724,908
SRF/Water DG9 2021-231 $3,000,000 $0 $160,474
SRF/Sewer SRF 2020-438-01 $17,200,000 $0 $654,426
SRF/Water DWEF 2022-246 $2,500,000 $0 $146,147
SRF/Sewer SRF 2022-472 $1,760,000 $0 $362,933

* If applicable, the original approved amount is adjusted for decreases and approved increases
**MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

The total MADS from section 2(a.) having a lien on SSTs is $.2,409,213.

(b.) Other prior obligations which have been funded or approved for which the local government
has pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Type of Obligation Identifying # Loan Amount Principal MADS
Forgiveness
QZAB/QSCB
TLDA/Public Health
TLDA/Transportation

The total MADS from section 2(b.) having a lien on SS5Ts is $0.

(c.) The total MADS from prior obligations having a lien on SSTs [subsections 2(a)+2(b)] is
$2.409,213.

Town of Smyrna CG20 2022-474 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 h 3




3. Loan Requests

The loan(s) which have been applied for and for which state-shared taxes will be pledged:

Loan Type Loan # Anticipated Base Loan Principal Anticipated
Interest Rate Forgiveness MADS
SRF/Sewer CG20 2022-474 1.92% $800,000 $0 $48,202

The anticipated total maximum annual pledge of state-shared taxes pursuant to loan request(s) is

$48,202.

4. Unobligated SSTs

The amount set forth in section (1) less the total amounts set forth in sections 2 and 3 is

$4,586,853.

The Local government hereby represents the information presented above is accurate and
understands that funding for the loan request(s) presented is contingent upon approval by the

TLDA.

Duly signed by an authorized representative of the Local Government on this 12th day of

April, 2022.

This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT
BY: MCLL ) éd““’“‘rp}@ﬁt
Miry Esther Reed, Mayor

Town of Smyrna CG20 2022-474 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 ﬂ 4




REQUIREMENT FOR REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
(FORM C€T-0253)

TOWN OF SMYRNA
CG20 2022-474

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. 8 9-21-134, a Report on Debt Obligation (the "Report”) must be prepared
for all debt obligations issued or entered into by any public entity and filed with its governing body
with a copy sent to the Office of State and Local Finance/Comptroller of the Treasury for the State of
Tennessee. The purpose of the Report is to provide clear and concise information to members of the
governing or legislative body that authorized and is responsible for the debt issued.

Public entities that fail to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code Ann. & 9-21-134 are not
permitted to enter into any further debt obligations until they have complied with the law. A State
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program applicant that is not in compliance with this law should file the
Report as soon as possible and provide notification of filing to the SRF loan program so that it may
proceed with the loan application. Instructions on how to file the Report are located in the “Debt”
category for “Local Finance” on the website of the Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury.

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) - Required Disclosure

Local governments that issue municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, should be aware that
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities
Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations that could impact an issuer’s
financial condition or security holder’s rights. The amendments add two events to the list of events
that must be included in any continuing disclosure agreement that is entered into after the
compliance date:

e Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or agreement
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial
obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material;
and

e Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar
events under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of
which reflect financial difficulties.

To learn how to report these new disclosures please refer to the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market
Access EMMA® website (emma.msrb.org).

The applicant, _Town of Smyrna_, attests that it is in compliance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-
134 for its debt obligations and understands that the Report is required to be filed once the
SRF loan has been approved by the Tennessee Local Development Authority and the agreement
has been executed by the borrower, The applicant further acknowledges that it may be
responsible to perform continuing disclosure undertakings related to SEC Rule 15¢2-12. Local
governments should always consult bond counsel in order to obtain advice on appropriate
disclosures related to this rule.

"Waﬂ% &4&‘“ FP\M 4/12/2022

Mary Bsth¥r Reed, Mayor Date

Town of Smyrna CG20 2022-474 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 E 5



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan Program
Funds Available for Loan Obligation
July 26, 2022

Unobligated Balance as of June 15, 2022 $ 88,897,667
Increases: Loan Number Amount
City of Lebanon DW7 2019-217 $ 4,386
$ 4,386
Unobligated Balance as of July 26, 2022 $ 88,902,053
Decreases: Loan Number Loan Amount
City of Cleveland DWF 2022-247 $ 825,000
City of Oak Ridge DWF 2022-253 $ 30,000,000

$ (30,825,000)

Remaining Funds Available for Loan Obligations as of July 26, 2022 $ 58,077,053




FACT SHEET
July 26, 2022

Borrower: City of Cleveland

Project Number: DWEF 2022-247

Requested SRF Funding: $825,000

Term: 20 years

Rate: 1.33% = 1.66% X 80% (Tier 3)
Project:

Pump Station Upgrades (Upgrades to the Dempsey Street Water Booster Pump Station).

Total Project Cost: $825,000
Project Funding:
SRF Loan Principal $825,000
Local Funds $ -0-
Other Funds $ -0-
County: Bradley County
Consulting Engineer: Stantec Consulting Services Inc.
Priority Ranking List: FY 2021
Priority Ranking: 19 of 721
Public Meeting: 01/27/2022

Financial Information:

Operating Revenues: $33,314,124
Current Rate: $27.02

Financial Review Rate: $27.02

Effective Rates, if applicable: N/A

Residential User Charge: 5,000 gal/month
Customer Base: 33,060

Audit Report Filed: 12/27/2021 (Timely)
Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 12/06/2021
Updated Financial Sufficiency Review: 03/09/2022

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).

" The Project ranked #19 of 72 on the 2021 Priority Ranking List (PRL).



FACT SHEET
July 26, 2022
Additional Security

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year: $6,415,127

MADS: Prior Obligations: $2,917,697
Proposed loan(s):
DWF 2022-247 $ 47,002
SRF 2022-473 $ 264,920
Totals $3,229,619

MADS as a percentage of SSTs: 50.34%



REPRESENTATION OF
LOANS AND STATE-SHARED TAXES
CITY OF CLEVELAND

DWF 2022-247

As security for payments due under a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Agreement, a local government
pledges user fees, charges, and ad valorem taxes as necessary to meet its obligations under a SRF Loan
Agreement. As an additional security for such payments due, a local government pledges and assigns its
unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to maximum annual debt service (MADS)

requirements.

1. State-Shared Taxes

The total amount of SSTs, as identified pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-31-105(c)(2), received by the

local government in the prior fiscal year of the State is $

2. Prior Obligations

6415127.

(a.) Prior SRF loans which have been funded or approved for which the Local Government has pledged

its SSTs are as follows:

Loan Type Loan # Base Loan* Principal MADS**
Forgiveness*
SRF/Sewer CW0 2013-319 $1,374,972 $451,020 $76,992
SRF/Sewer SRF 2013-320 $8,169,388 $0 $457,440
SRF/Sewer CG4 2015-349 $2,325,000 $175,000 $133,092
SRF/Water DG2 2014-151 $2,000,000 $500,000 $115,812
SRF/Water DW6 2017-192 $798,756 $199,689 $46,764
SRF/Water DWEF 2016-172 $2,889,229 $0 $159,720
SRF/Water DWF 2017-193 $195,000 $0 $11,400
SRF/Sewer CG3 2017-379 $104,897 $5,521 $5,724
SRF/Water DWEF 2018-205 $430,000 $0 $24,456
SRF/Sewer CW6 2018-415 $884,206 $98,245 $51,432
SRF/Sewer SRF 2018-416 $491,390 $0 $28,620
SRF/Sewer SRF 2018-417 $10,000,000 $0 $583,476
SRF/Sewer CW7 2019-431 $1,593,900 $177,100 $91,152
SRF/Sewer SRF 2018-417-01 $10,000,000 $0 $537,540

* If applicable, the original approved amount is adjusted for decreases and approved increases
**MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

The total MADS from section 2(a.) having a lien on SSTs is $2,323,620.

(b.) Other prior obligations which have been funded or approved for which the local government has
pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Type of Obligation Identifying # Loan Amount Principal MADS
Forgiveness
QSCB BFC01000 $4,160,000 $0 $594,077
TLDA/Public Health
TLDA/Transportation

City of Cleveland DWF 2022-247 SRF Loan Application — Revised November 2021 I 6




The total MADS from section 2(b.) having a lien on SSTs is $594,077.

(c.) The total MADS from prior obligations having a lien on SSTs [subsections 2(a)+2(b)] is $2,917,697.
3. Loan Requests

The loan(s) which have been applied for and for which state-shared taxes will be pledged:

Loan Type Loan # Anticipated Base Loan Principal Anticipated
Interest Rate Forgiveness MADS
SRF/Water DWF 2022-247 1.33% $825,000 $0 $47,002
SRF/Sewer SRF 2022-473 1.33% $4,650,000 $0 $264,920

The anticipated total maximum annual pledge of state-shared taxes pursuant to loan request(s) is

$311,922.

4. Unobligated SSTs
The amount set forth in section (1) less the total amounts set forth in sections 2 and 3 is $3,185,508.

The Local government hereby represents the information presented above is accurate and
understands that funding for the loan request(s) presented is contingent upon approval by the TLDA.

Duly signed by an authorized representative of the Local Government on this

Suae , 2022.

This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

BY:

Tim Henderson, President/CEO

O

4

day of

Cleveland Utilities board

City of Cleveland DWF 2022-247 SRF Loan Application — Revised November 2021 g 7




REQUIREMENT FOR REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
(FORM CT-0253)
CITY OF CLEVELAND
DWF 2022-247

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134, a Report on Debt Obligation (the “Report”) must be prepared for
all debt obligations issued or entered into by any public entity and filed with its governing body with a copy
sent to the Office of State and Local Finance/Comptroller of the Treasury for the State of Tennessee. The
purpose of the Report is to provide clear and concise information to members of the governing or legislative
body that authorized and is responsible for the debt issued.

Public entities that fail to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134 are not permitted
to enter into any further debt obligations until they have complied with the law. A State Revolving Fund
(SRF) loan program applicant that is not in compliance with this law should file the Report as soon as
possible and provide notification of filing to the SRF loan program so that it may proceed with the loan
application. Instructions on how to file the Report are located in the "Debt” category for “Local Finance” on
the website of the Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury.

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) — Required Disclosure

Local governments that issue municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, should be aware that the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities
Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations that could impact an issuer's financial
condition or security holder's rights. The amendments add two events to the list of events that must be
included in any continuing disclosure agreement that is entered into after the compliance date:

e Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation
of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material; and

e Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events
under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which reflect
financial difficulties.

To learn how to report these new disclosures please refer to the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access
EMMA® website (emma.msrb.org).

The applicant, _City of Cleveland , attests that it is in compliance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134
for its debt obligations and understands that the Report is required to be filed once the SRF loan has
been approved by the Tennessee Local Development Authority and the agreement has been
executed by the borrower. The applicant further acknowledges that it may be responsible to perform
continuing disclosure undertakings related to SEC Rule 15c2-12. Local governments should always

consult bond counsel i ' vice on appropriate disclosures related to this rule.
0 P 61422
Tim Henderson, President/CEQ ef Cleveland Utilities Board Date

This is the Comptroller's certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

City of Cleveland DWF 2022-247 SRF Loan Application — Revised November 2021 i 8



FACT SHEET
July 26, 2022

Borrower: City of Oak Ridge

Project Number: DWEF 2022-253

Requested SRF Funding: $30,000,000

Term: 20 years

Rate: 2.48% = 2.48% X 100% (Tier 4)
Project:

New Water Treatment Plant (Construction of a 16 MGD membrance filtration WTP).

Total Project Cost: $53,640,697
Project Funding:
SRF Loan Principal $30,000,000
Local Funds $ -0-
Other Funds (WIFIA) $20,580,297
Other Funds (DWF 2019-216) $ 3,060,400
County: Anderson and Roane Counties
Consulting Engineer: Jacobs
Priority Ranking List: FY 2020
Priority Ranking: 20 of 48"
Public Meeting: 06/21/2022

Financial Information:

Operating Revenues: $22,141,678
Current Rate: $39.67

Financial Review Rate: $39.67

Effective Rates, if applicable: N/A

Residential User Charge: 5,000 gal/month
Customer Base: 11,937

Audit Report Filed: 12/31/2021 (Timely)
Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 05/31/2022
Updated Financial Sufficiency Review: N/A

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).

" The Project ranked #20 of 48 on the 2020 Priority Ranking List (PRL).



FACT SHEET
July 26, 2022
Additional Security

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year: $4,512,472

MADS: Prior Obligations: $1,314,312
Proposed loan(s):
DWF 2022-253 $1,904,145
SRF 2021-455 $ 119,931
Totals $3,338,388

MADS as a percentage of SSTs: 73.98%



REPRESENTATION OF

LOANS AND STATE-SHARED TAXES
CITY OF OAK RIDGE
DWF 2022-253

As security for payments due under a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Agreement, a local
government pledges user fees, charges, and ad valorem taxes as necessary to meet its
obligations under a SRF Loan Agreement. As an additional security for such payments due, a
local government pledges and assigns its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount
equal to maximum annual debt service (MADS) requirements.

1. State-Shared Taxes

The total amount of SSTs, as identified pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-31-105(c)(2),
received by the local government in the prior fiscal year of the State is $4,512,472.

2. Prior Obligations

(a.) Prior SRF loans which have been funded or approved for which the Local Government
has pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Loan Type Loan # Base Loan* Principal MADS**
Forgiveness*
SRF/Sewer CwW1 2013-324 $3,590,032 $398,892 $201,024
SRF/Sewer SRF 2013=325 $12,683,578 $0 $708,504
SRF/Sewer SRF 2014-337 $2,691,716 $0 $158,832
SRF/Sewer CG4 2017-356 $1,788,572 $134,623 $107,460
SRF/Sewer SRF 2017-396 $2,335,805 $0 $138,492

* If applicable, the original approved amount is adjusted for decreases and approved increases
**MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

The total MADS from section 2(a.) having a lien on SSTs is $1,314,312.

(b.) Other prior obligations which have been funded or approved for which the local
government has pledged its SSTs are as follows:

Type of Obligation

Identifying #

Loan Amount

Forgiveness

Principal

MADS

QZAB/QSCB

TLDA/Public Health

TLDA/Transportation

The total MADS from section 2(b.) having a lien on SSTs is $0.

(c.) The total MADS from prior obligations having a lien on SSTs [subsections 2(a)+2(b)]
is $1,314,312.

3. Loan Requests
The loan(s) which have been applied for and for which state-shared taxes will be pledged:

Loan Type Loan # Anticipated Base Loan Principal Anticipated
Interest Rate Forgiveness MADS
SRF/Water DWF 2022-253 2.48% $30,000,000 $0 $1,904,145
SRF/Sewer SRF 2021-455 2.42% $1,900,000 $0 $119,931

City of Oak Ridge DWF 2022-253 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 I 6




The anticipated total maximum annual pledge of state-shared taxes pursuant to loan
request(s) is $2,024,076.

4. Unobligated SSTs

The amount set forth in section (1) less the total amounts set forth in sections 2 and 3 is
$1,174,084.

The Local government hereby represents the information presented above is
accurate and understands that funding for the loan request(s) presented is
contingent upon approval by the TLDA.

Duly signed by an authorized representative of the Local Government on this 21st
day of June, 2022.

This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31 8.

LOCAL GOV ‘Nl‘:lﬂ;r/

Warren L. Goockl, Mayor /

City of Oak Ridge DWF 2022-253 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 | 7



REQUIREMENT FOR REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
(FORM CT-0253)
CITY OF OAK RIDGE
DWF 2022-253

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134, a Report on Debt Obligation (the “Report”) must be
prepared for all debt obligations issued or entered into by any public entity and filed with its
governing body with a copy sent to the Office of State and Local Finance/Comptroller of the
Treasury for the State of Tennessee. The purpose of the Report is to provide clear and concise
information to members of the governing or legislative body that authorized and is responsible
for the debt issued.

Public entities that fail to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134 are
not permitted to enter into any further debt obligations until they have complied with the law.
A State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program applicant that is not in compliance with this law
should file the Report as soon as possible and provide notification of filing to the SRF loan
program so that it may proceed with the loan application. Instructions on how to file the
Report are located in the “"Debt” category for “Local Finance” on the website of the Tennessee
Comptroller of the Treasury.

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) - Required Disclosure

Local governments that issue municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, should be
aware that the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule
15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations
that could impact an issuer’s financial condition or security holder’s rights. The amendments
add two events to the list of events that must be included in any continuing disclosure
agreement that is entered into after the compliance date:

e Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar
terms of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect
security holders, if material; and

o Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated
person, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

To learn how to report these new disclosures please refer to the MSRB's Electronic Municipal
Market Access EMMA® website (emma.msrb.org).

The applicant, _City of Oak Ridge , attests that it is in compliance with Tenn. Code
Ann. § 9-21-134 for its debt obligations and understands that the Report is required
to be filed once the SRF loan has been approved by the Tennessee Local
Development Authority and the agreement has been executed by the borrower. The
applicant further acknowledggs’that it may be responsible to perform continuing

disclosure undertakings related to SEC Rule 15c2-12. Local governments should
always consult bond coungel in o obtain advice on appropriate disclosures

related to this rule.
/// : ﬂéﬁi% June 21, 2022

Warren L. Gooch? Mayor U
This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.

Date

City of Oak Ridge DWF 2022-253 SRF Loan Application - Revised November 2021 | 8





